





















































































































































































































































SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CEQA Internal Decision Memorandum
Transmittal Form

Project:

RWTP Reliability
Improvement
Project —
Expansion of
Working Hours

Project # (8 digits):

93294057

Determination: Addendum

Project Manager/Extension:

Mike Munson
X2926

Environmental Michael Martin
Planner/Extension: | x3095

Signature on this transmittal indicates agreement with the recommendations of the attached
Initial Determination Memo and supporting documents. Approval is required to move the
package forward to the next approving authority.
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TO: Kat.herine Oven, Deputy Operating FROM: Michael Martin,
Officer
Environmental Planner

RWTP Reliability Improvement Project —

SUBJECT: Expansion of Working Hours DATE: June 2, 2016
(Project # 93294057)
RECOMMENDATION

This memorandum provides a basis for the recommendation that the expansion of working
hours for the construction of the Rinconada Water Treatment Plant Reliability Improvement
Project is a minor change that can be documented with an Addendum under CEQA. This
recommendation was developed after a review of background materials, and discussion by the
project team and District counsel.

ISSUE

The contractor has requested the District more time during each day to construct the project.
Ideally this will allow the work to be completed in a shorter amount of time. Construction hours
of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. were noted in the certified EIR. The question is what level of
documentation is appropriate to change the construction hours to 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

CEQA CONSIDERATIONS

For CEQA compliance, changes to the project are subject to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162
and 15164. After an EIR has been certified for a project, if proposed changes to a project would
result in new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in severity of previously
identified significant effects, Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines requires preparation of a
Subsequent EIR. If none of the conditions specified in Section 15162 occur, an addendum shall
be prepared per Section 15164.

ANALYSIS

The Board approved the EIR for the Project in January 2015. The project description in the EIR
indicated that the hours of construction would be between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on
weekdays. The District is proposing to extend those hours to 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on
weekdays; no changes are proposed for weekend work. An extended workday was determined
to have potential impacts to air quality, noise, and traffic. No new or increased level of impacts
would occur to other resources areas.

Air Quality

The hours of construction would be increased from 9 hours to 11 hours on a daily basis. It was
assumed that extending the construction hours by 22 percent would result in a corresponding
22 percent increase in daily emissions or ROG, NOx and dust. However, this assumption is
conservative because the activities that would occur during the extended hours include start up
activities, site preparations, and logistics to construction work tasks, and the majority of
emissions are caused by activities such as excavation, materials hauling, and concrete pouring
which will continue to occur mostly during the former 8 am through 5 pm construction hours. In
addition, implementation of Mitigation Measure AIR-1 will ensure that there will be no new
significant or substantially worse air quality impacts as a result of the extended work hours.



Noise

Daily work hour limitations are normally imposed to reduce noise impacts on nearby residences.
As noted in the EIR the Town of Los Gatos municipal code restricts construction activities to 8
am to 8 pm on weekdays. The District met with staff from the Town of Los Gatos, who indicated
that the proposal would be acceptable as long as neighbors are informed; the Town of Los
Gatos also acknowledged that the District is not subject to the town’s limitations regarding
construction hours based on Section 53091(d) of the Government Code. The District held a
public meeting to provide a project update and to introduce the proposed new construction
hours to the neighbors in attendance, where it did not receive objection on the proposed new
hours. The EIR determined that construction noise would result in significant short term
increases in the noise level. Mitigation was required in the EIR to reduce this impact to a less
than significant level. The same mitigation measure will ensure that extending the work hours
would not result in new significant or substantially worse noise impacts.

Traffic

The Project will create an average of 25 one-way trips per hour during peak truck traffic periods
(when there is off-hauling of excavated materials or delivery of fill materials and concrete). This
same level of traffic is assumed for extended work hours. The EIR concluded that this level of
truck trips would not result in an increase in traffic that is substantial in relation to the existing
traffic load and capacity of the street system. The same conclusion would apply for the
additional hours of construction. Although the EIR determined that truck traffic would have a
less than significant impact to the local circulation system, the District included language in the
contractor’'s specifications that restricts truck traffic during the school year. This restriction will
be maintained with the extended work hours. Thus, extending the work hours would not result
in new significant or substantially worse traffic impacts.

CONCLUSION

As described above, the change to working hours would not create new significant impacts or
substantially increase the severity of previously identified significant impacts. Indeed, allowing
extended work hours could result in beneficial impacts if construction can be completed sooner
than previously estimated. This would reduce the number of days that the public is exposed to
construction air emission, noise and traffic. None of the conditions cited in CEQA Guidelines
Section 15162(a) would occur as a result of the proposed change. Thus, an addendum shall be
prepared per CEQA Guidelines Section 15164.

If you approve the recommendations contained in this memorandum, please sign below.
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Michael Martin, Environmental Planner

Approval:

Katherine Oven, Deputy Operating Officer

cc: Mike Munson, CEQA Administrative Record
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Katherine Oven, Deputy Operating FROM: Michael Martin,

TO: Officer Environmental Planner

RWTP Reliability Improvement Project —

SUBJECT: ;’5":3;&”(,3;""“"'"9 Hours DATE: January 10, 2017

(Project # 93294057)

RECOMMENDATION

This memorandum provides a basis for the recommendation that the expansion of trucking
hours for the construction of the Rinconada Water Treatment Plant Reliability Improvement
Project is a minor change that can be documented with an Addendum under CEQA. This
recommendation was developed after a review of background materials, and discussion by the
project team and District counsel.

ISSUE

The District wants to expand the time available for construction trucks to haul material to and
from the site. This will allow the work to be completed in a shorter amount of time. The
proposed new hours for all construction trucks are between 7 a.m. to 6 p.m. on workdays, with
the following school-related restrictions:

8:15 a.m. to 8:45 a.m.
e 2:45 p.m. to 3:15 p.m. (excluding Wednesday)
* 1:45 p.m. to 2:15 p.m. (only Wednesday)

Construction hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. were noted in the certified EIR and hour-long
breaks during the start of end of the school day are called out in the specifications. The
question is what level of documentation is appropriate to change the construction hours to 7:00
a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. No changes are proposed to weekend work and
hours.

District staff also want to formalize greater use of the Granada Way entrance for construction
related traffic.

CEQA CONSIDERATIONS

For CEQA compliance, changes to the project are subject to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162
and 15164. After an EIR has been certified for a project, if proposed changes to a project would
result in new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in severity of previously
identified significant effects, Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines requires preparation of a
Subsequent EIR. If none of the conditions specified in Section 15162 occur, an addendum shall
be prepared per Section 15164.

ANALYSIS

As the EIR assumed truck trips during all construction hours the impacts to air quality, noise,
and traffic already include the effects of truck traffic during morning pick-up and afternoon drop-
off at Rolling Hills Middle School. The First Addendum expanded this analysis to include the
periods from 7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and from 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. The EIR determined that there is no
significant safety impact from truck traffic to the school. The District recently conducted a traffic
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study of the Pollard Road and More Avenue intersection (DKS, 2016) that reached the same
conclusion. The Town of Los Gatos has reviewed the District’s proposed new truck hours and
the updated traffic study, and has not stated any objections to the changes.

To better utilize construction areas on the project site, the District is also planning to use the
entrance on Granada Way more than it has in the past. The EIR notes that this entrance would
be used for “peak truck activity days,” however peak activities days is not defined. The Granada
Way entrance would be used for construction worker parking and to provide greater flexibility in
circulating trucks through the project site. The use of the Granada Way gate is consistent with
the idea of additional access during peak activity times which includes the on-going grading and
concrete work that is expected to continue for approximately six more months. The More
Avenue entrance will continue to be the primary access point for construction vehicles.

CONCLUSION

The change to working hours, or greater use of the Granada Way entrance, would not create
impacts or substantially increase the severity of previously identified significant impacts that are
not already fully analyzed in the EIR. None of the conditions cited in CEQA Guidelines Section
15162(a) would occur as a result of the proposed change. Thus, an addendum shall be
prepared per CEQA Guidelines Section 15164.

If you approve the recommendations contained in this memorandum, please sign below.
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Michael Martin, Environmental Planner

Approval:

Katherine Oven, Deputy Operating Officer

CC: Mike Munson, CEQA Administrative Record





